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          1  HOUSING PRESERVATION AND DEVELOPMENT

          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Good morning, I

          3  am Archie Spigner, Chair of the Council's Committee

          4  on Housing and Buildings. This meeting is called to

          5  order.

          6                 On February 24th, 1999, the Housing

          7  and Buildings Committee convened a hearing to

          8  consider Proposed Intro. No. 198-A. At that time we

          9  heard testimony from the Commissioner of Fire,

         10  Thomas Von Essen. The Committee then voted to pass

         11  proposed Intro. No. 198-A. Since that vote, proposed

         12  Intro. No. 198-B was drafted to do the following:

         13                 - to clarify and conform some of the

         14  language contained in certain provisions of proposed

         15  Intro. No. 198-A to existing language in the code.

         16                 - to include amendments to Table 4-1

         17  found in Title 27 of the Code.

         18                 - to include references to newly

         19  proposed Reference Standard RS 17-2B for the

         20  installation of sprinkler systems in one and

         21  two-family homes for those who voluntarily choose to

         22  install sprinkler systems in their one or two-family

         23  homes.

         24                 - to provide that a siamese

         25  connection need not be installed in a sprinkler
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          2  system in such one and two-family homes.

          3                 - to add new language to the bill to

          4  allow the omission of sprinklers in closets and

          5  bathrooms in buildings and spaces classified as

          6  multiple dwelling or a one or two-family home.

          7                 This meeting was convened to consider

          8  this newly proposed Intro. No. 198-B, and to

          9  consider a preconsidered resolution determining that

         10  the enactment of proposed Intro. No. 198-B will not

         11  have a significant adverse impact on the

         12  environment.

         13                 Gentlemen, ladies, do you all

         14  understand that? Basically it is the same bill with

         15  a couple of technical changes to encompass various

         16  possibilities, and omissions and close a few

         17  loopholes and other kinds of unforeseen problems.

         18                 So, if there are no questions then we

         19  will take the vote and I will ask the clerk to call

         20  the roll.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Mr.

         22  Chairman.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Speak into the

         24  mic, please, and identify yourself for the record.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Council
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          2  Member Provenzano. Sprinklers would be installed

          3  during construction, so if it is voluntary, how does

          4  this fit into --

          5                 MR. FERTIG: The mandate was to --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Identify

          7  yourself, Harvey.

          8                 MR. FERTIG: Harvey Fertig, Assistant

          9  Counsel to the Speaker.

         10                 The mandate were for four or more

         11  units.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Right.

         13                 MR. FERTIG: If a one or two-family

         14  wanted to put it in, they were regulations

         15  voluntarily, they are not mandated to put it in.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: So

         17  voluntarily by whom?

         18                 MR. FERTIG: By the owner.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: By you.

         20                 MR. FERTIG: By the owner.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay.

         22                 MR. FERTIG: By the owner of the

         23  property.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay, but

         25  people build houses, a construction guy builds one-
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          2  and two-family homes, there is no owner until the

          3  homes are completed.

          4                 MR. FERTIG: Then the construction

          5  guy, the developer.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: If he decides to

          7  put them in.

          8                 MR. FERTIG: He decides to put it in,

          9  you have to follow regulations established by the

         10  Department.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Then the

         12  voluntary is up to the developer, not to the person

         13  that buys.

         14                 MR. FERTIG: Right.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: The builder

         16  could put a lot of amenities in. It is an option.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: You are still

         18  saying that it is not mandated?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Yes.

         20                 Any other questions?

         21                 Council Member Linares? Council

         22  Member Boyland?

         23                 The Chair wants to apologize for

         24  being late, some unforeseen traffic.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Could I
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          2  stupidly ask what a siamese connection is?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Siamese twins.

          4  Siamese connection.

          5                 MR. FERTIG: We allowed for more

          6  simplified means of construction, so an easier and

          7  less expensive means, and this eliminated the

          8  requirement of the siamese connection, two-part

          9  connection, separate systems.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: I have a

         12  question in terms of the new construction. I don't

         13  understand the voluntarily for existing housing, for

         14  new construction, one, two and three-unit homes; my

         15  question is: If you are having a brand new home and

         16  this is something worthwhile having, why not?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: We have had a

         18  lot of discussion on that aspect of this bill, and

         19  it was felt that there was sufficient safeguards,

         20  and as an option that a builder or a home-owner

         21  could use, but at this time it is a part of the

         22  ongoing discussions, it may be a revision, but the

         23  ramifications were too far reaching and too

         24  uncertain as for this bill to impose the added cost

         25  of a measurement which might have been redundant or
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          2  unnecessary. So, we leave the option to the

          3  homeowner to do it, or the builder or the developer,

          4  whoever feels the need, this places in the code what

          5  they have to do or don't do if they wanted to use

          6  that option.

          7                 All right, can we have a roll call,

          8  please, on the Intro.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: I have a

         10  question.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Sure, Council

         12  Member Boyland.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: This may be

         14  for a later meeting, but have we discussed the whole

         15  issue of the financial cost? I remember we were

         16  discussing the financial cost of the sprinklers and

         17  the piping and all of the things that are going to

         18  have to be incurred?

         19                 Again, I am in a district where we

         20  are trying to do a lot of developing, we are trying

         21  to do a lot of building right now.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: In terms of

         24  this is going to incur another expense on top of --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: There is no
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          2  doubt about it. But it is the opinion of the chair

          3  and the staff and those that we worked with that it

          4  is an expense on balance that is well worth

          5  imposing.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Are we still

          7  looking at the breaks that they are going to

          8  receive, as far as tax-wise and things?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Pardon me?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: In terms of

         11  doing the subsidies on top of new housing that we

         12  are trying to do, will this also -- I don't want the

         13  cost of the house to go up because now they have to

         14  put sprinklers in every -- not that it is going to

         15  be a massive cost, but it is going to have to be an

         16  incurred expense that was not there before in terms

         17  of doing housing over four-families?

         18                 MS. NASSER: There is an additional

         19  expense, however, the new reference standards that

         20  are proposed by the Department of Buildings are at

         21  17-2A and RS 17-2B, that actually allow for a

         22  modified installation of the sprinkler system, such

         23  that there will be a reduced cost.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: There will be

         25  a reduced cost?
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          2                 MS. NASSER: Okay, there is an

          3  additional cost, nonetheless it will be at a lower

          4  level.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay, all

          7  questions have been asked and answered.

          8                 Mr. Cherry, will you proceed with the

          9  roll call, please, on Intro. 198-B and the

         10  resolution.

         11                 Please proceed with the roll call.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Spigner.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Aye.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Linares.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Boyland.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Aye.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Michels.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: May I be

         20  excused to explain my vote?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Yes, Councilman,

         22  you are recognized for purposes of explaining your

         23  vote.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Mr. Chairman,

         25  I will vote aye on this legislation and on the
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          2  accompanying legislation for the negative

          3  declaration.

          4                 However, I think if we do recognize

          5  that sprinklers are a life-saving device, and I

          6  think they certainly are, especially in the City

          7  high-rises, it would seem to me that in the future

          8  if this works out and we can reduce the costs, that

          9  it should be much more available to and mandated

         10  much more to all housing in the City of New York.

         11                 I will vote this as a first step, but

         12  I think we have to go much further and I am looking

         13  forward to the City to implement it in the New York

         14  City Housing Authority buildings and all buildings

         15  owned by the City whether they are multiple

         16  dwellings or otherwise.

         17                 Thank you. I vote aye.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you.

         19  Continue the roll call.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Provenzano.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Aye.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: The vote stands

         23  at five in the affirmative, none in the negative

         24  with no abstentions, and is still open.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay, thank you.
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          2  The matter is adopted, and we will hold the vote

          3  open for Council Member Ognibene and any other

          4  Council Member of this Committee who is not present,

          5  in light of the delay, we will extend that

          6  consideration.

          7                 Just a brief recess, two minutes, and

          8  then we will move into the hearing on the

          9  Preliminary Budget.

         10                 Two-minute recess. Nobody move,

         11  please.

         12                 (Recess taken.)

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: One thing this

         14  Committee prides itself on is being prompt, and it

         15  is very rare that we not adhere to our starting

         16  time, unfortunately I have some illness in my family

         17  and I had to wait for the nurse and then I got

         18  caught in traffic. So here I am.

         19                 The hearing this morning is on the

         20  Mayor's Preliminary Budget, as it relates to the

         21  Housing and Preservation Development Department and

         22  the Department of Buildings and the New York City

         23  Housing Authority. The first portion is HPD, and the

         24  Commissioner of HPD, Mr. Roberts is there, and with

         25  members of his staff and I am certain that he will
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          2  give us his view of the various components of the

          3  Mayor's budget and will then be available, as

          4  tradition, to questions from members; am I right,

          5  sir?

          6                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: That's right.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: This is the

          8  preliminary budget, and we will come back for the

          9  executive budget and we will then hopefully one day

         10  before too late in June, have a consensus budget,

         11  meaning that the end product of a collaboration

         12  between the Council and the Administration, and that

         13  is what we learned what is best.

         14                 Commissioner, if you will identify

         15  yourself. Excuse me.

         16                 Also, any member of the public

         17  wishing to comment on either the Department of

         18  Housing Preservation and Development, the Department

         19  of Buildings or Housing Authority budget, you will

         20  have to wait until the completion of a hearing and

         21  then we will give you your opportunity.

         22                 Commissioner.

         23                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Thank you.

         24                 Good morning, Chairman Spigner, and

         25  members of the Council. I am Richard Roberts,
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          2  Commissioner of the Department of Housing,

          3  Preservation and Development. Thank you for the

          4  opportunity to testify today on the preliminary

          5  capital and expense budget for Fiscal Year 2000.

          6                 Overall, HPD's capital budget for

          7  Fiscal Year 2000 is $354 million, which includes

          8  approximately $245 million in City funds, and $108

          9  million in federal and state money.

         10                 Approximately $166 million is

         11  allocated to the rehab City-owned properties, and

         12  return the in rem housing stock to private

         13  ownership.

         14                 Another $73 million has been

         15  allocated to provide assistance to private owners to

         16  upgrade systems and to preserve properties at risk

         17  of abandonment, and $43 million is available to help

         18  subsidize affordable housing, for low and

         19  moderate-income housing.

         20                 There is also funding for $30 million

         21  for the support of housing programs to create

         22  housing for formerly homeless and special needs

         23  population.

         24                 The balance of the $42 million

         25  includes funding for demolition, computer systems
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          2  and other housing-related capital needs.

          3                 I would now like to take this

          4  opportunity to discuss the new direction of the

          5  agency.

          6                 As many of you know, we recently

          7  reorganized HPD to reflect our changing mission,

          8  which is to focus on preventing housing abandonment

          9  and facilitating responsible ownership.

         10                 The new office of anti-abandonment

         11  resources coordinates a comprehensive abandonment

         12  preventive strategy. This strategy integrates and

         13  refocuses our existing owner education, technical

         14  assistance and code enforcement tools. In concert

         15  with the Third-Party Transfer Program, this arsenal

         16  of housing tools provides targeted intervention to

         17  address problem properties and prevent private

         18  disinvestment and abandonment.

         19                 The Housing Education program is the

         20  centerpiece of our efforts to empower responsible

         21  ownership, providing a variety of training

         22  opportunities to owners, building managers and

         23  maintenance staff. This program now offers

         24  everything from beginning and advanced building

         25  management, financial management and maintenance
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          2  skills.

          3                 Housing education programming has

          4  grown in response to emerging HPD initiatives. This

          5  year, courses designed specifically for owners of

          6  distressed buildings were first offered in our Bronx

          7  Local Law 37 pilot area and then replicated

          8  throughout the boroughs.

          9                 This year, 1,800 owners participated

         10  in our housing education program, to provide

         11  training opportunities to an expanding audience. We

         12  plan to introduce video conferencing in Fiscal Year

         13  2000.

         14                 HPD's loan programs have also been

         15  redirected to compliment the anti-abandonment

         16  priorities. First, we are working to ensure that the

         17  agency's loan programs are responsive to the needs

         18  of at-risk owners.  Towards that goal, we have

         19  developed a new program to enable owners to use

         20  low-interest loans for violation removal.

         21                 Second, the agency will expand its

         22  focus on asset management to ensure that properties

         23  improved by HPD investment will remain viable and

         24  current in their obligations.

         25                 As part of this effort, HPD will
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          2  offer comprehensive remediation programs for TIL

          3  projects with tax arrears and repair needs. The

          4  work-out plans will include financial restructuring,

          5  guidance and management issues, additional

          6  rehabilitation assistance.

          7                 To facilitate this effort HPD will

          8  request that the Council work with us to develop an

          9  appropriate tax relief plan. Another critical

         10  anti-abandonment tool is the Housing Litigation

         11  Bureau, which provides targeted code enforcement

         12  through its annual heat litigation program,

         13  supportive tenant initiated litigation and

         14  comprehensive litigation against owners who refuse

         15  to make repairs, despite our outreach efforts.

         16                 In addition, HLB has continued to

         17  identify opportunities for organizational

         18  enhancement. The central case processing previously

         19  implementing to increase attorney productivity will

         20  be augmented by the agency-wide litigation division

         21  comprised of HLB and our Landlord Tenant Litigation

         22  Division.

         23                 Third Party Transfer is an

         24  increasingly important part of the anti-abandonment

         25  effort. In the Bronx tax map 10 Pilot, 57 buildings
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          2  remain in the action with the conclusion of the

          3  four-month mandatory redemption period, which ended

          4  on March 1st.

          5                 We received over 120 responses to the

          6  request for proposal issued in December to identify

          7  new purchasers. Review of these responses to develop

          8  a purchaser pool is now underway.

          9                 We are also completing negotiations

         10  with the local initiatives support corporation, New

         11  York Equity Fund, and the enterprise foundation to

         12  form an Article 11 Corporation to be known as

         13  Neighborhood Restore.

         14                 The Corporation will take temporary

         15  title to these properties and help purchasers

         16  develop rehabilitation financing plans prior to

         17  final conveyance.

         18                 The group will also assist in the

         19  selection of owners from the purchaser pool. Of

         20  course HPD will notify the Council as required of

         21  both the interim and final purchasers.

         22                 Now that the four-month mandatory

         23  redemption period has ended, HPD has an additional

         24  four months to convey title. We are looking forward

         25  to initiating the first transfer this spring. We
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          2  plan to soon expand the Bronx pilot program to areas

          3  throughout New York City.

          4                 To support our efforts, the Housing

          5  Development Corporation has recently contributed

          6  several million dollars to a rehabilitation

          7  financing for Third Party Transfer buildings.

          8                 The agency has also developed a new

          9  and innovative strategy to use Third Party Transfer

         10  to help stabilize 7A buildings.

         11                 As you may know, the 7A program has

         12  recently been revamped. Among other things, it now

         13  features a pool of prescreened professional

         14  administrators. We plan to further enhance the 7A

         15  program by using Third Party Transfer capabilities

         16  to more expeditiously discharge these distressed

         17  buildings into long-term responsible private

         18  ownership.

         19                 The resulting shorter length of stay

         20  in this program should significantly reduce costs

         21  for 7A buildings in the future.

         22                 We have allocated another $2 million

         23  of capital funds for this fiscal year to 7A in order

         24  to assist the severely distressed buildings which

         25  are currently in the program.
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          2                 Finally, by considering key

          3  indicators such as code violations, tax

          4  lien-to-value ratio, tax arrears and observed

          5  conditions, HPD determines what intervention

          6  strategy is most appropriate for a certain building.

          7  Be it education, code enforcement, litigation, a

          8  loan, or third party transfer, the strategy chosen

          9  will be in line with our overarching mission to

         10  prevent disinvestment, disrepair and abandonment.

         11                 In addition to our preventative

         12  efforts, HPD is also dedicated to rehabilitating and

         13  disposing of buildings which require more assistance

         14  than a small loan and a training course.

         15                 Building blocks, Mayor Giuliani's

         16  initiative to convey City-owned properties to local

         17  entrepreneurs, not-for-profits and tenants, has been

         18  remarkably successful.

         19                 In fact, the number of City-owned

         20  properties is down to a record low. From Fiscal '94

         21  to October '98, the number of occupied in rem

         22  properties dropped 41 percent from over 30,000 to

         23  under 18,000.

         24                 This fiscal year alone we expect to

         25  return 157 buildings, or 2,712 units to responsible
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          2  community-based owners.

          3                 This is the largest privatization

          4  effort of any government anywhere. The results of

          5  this effort are astonishing. Tenants are now owners

          6  of renovated apartments, and communities which used

          7  to be blighted by dilapidated buildings are vibrant

          8  once again.

          9                 HPD's anti-abandonment and

         10  disposition programs are complimented by the new

         11  Safe At Home Initiative. This joint initiative with

         12  the Police Department and Local Initiative Support

         13  Corporation focuses on two targeted communities, the

         14  Morrisania section of the Bronx, and Bedford

         15  Stuyvesant in Brooklyn.

         16                 By combining housing development,

         17  anti-abandonment and preservation with intensified

         18  law enforcement, Safe At Home will revitalize and

         19  promote the long-term stability of these two areas.

         20                 We have tailored our popular owner

         21  training program for this initiative to focus on

         22  crime prevention, narcotics control, sanitation,

         23  building maintenance, record keeping and other

         24  management and quality of life issues.

         25                 Our next steps will involve
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          2  addressing the needs of about 150 distressed

          3  buildings with low-interest loans, code enforcement

          4  and litigation.

          5                 These two neighborhoods will also be

          6  the next areas where HPD and the Department of

          7  Finance will initiate in rem actions in order to

          8  ultimately transfer properties to responsible

          9  private owners.

         10                 In terms of improved safety, the safe

         11  home communities have already seen remarkable

         12  results.

         13                 Working in private buildings for the

         14  first time, HPD's Narcotics Control Unit has worked

         15  with the 79th Precinct in Bedford Stuyvesant to shut

         16  down the top location in the neighborhood, 36

         17  Decatur Street. The building was the subject of the

         18  area's highest number of citizen complaints in 1998,

         19  and generated as many as 50 drug transactions per

         20  hour.

         21                 The Safe At Home neighborhoods will

         22  also see the results of significant housing

         23  investment. 317 units are being constructed to the

         24  Partnership New Homes Program and over 1,200 units

         25  are being rehabilitated under the Building Blocks,
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          2  City Home and Homeworks Programs.

          3                 Over the next three years, the City

          4  is investing $88 million in housing development and

          5  preservation in the Safe At Home areas, combined

          6  with previous investment, the total of $184 million

          7  will be dedicated to helping these communities.

          8                 $7.5 million of capital funds have

          9  been moved forward to Fiscal Year 2000 to fund Safe

         10  At Home development and preservation activities.

         11                 In addition to moving forward funds

         12  for Safe At Home, we have also added a total of $5.6

         13  million to attract more private investment in

         14  neighborhood retail under the first round of the

         15  Anchor Program.

         16                 The Housing Development Corporation

         17  will make available additional subsidy for the

         18  residential component.

         19                 The Anchor Program has recently been

         20  expanded to include 13 commercial corridors, where

         21  over 500,000 square feet of new retail space and

         22  over 1,100 new home ownership units will be

         23  developed.

         24                 This represents new investment of

         25  over $250 million, $180 million of which has been
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          2  leveraged from our private sector partners.

          3                 Anchor's first new stores - a drug

          4  store, insurance company and local entrepreneur -

          5  will open for business in the spring at Fulton

          6  Street and Ralph Avenue in Bedford Stuyvesant.

          7                 In addition, this spring and summer,

          8  six Anchor projects will start construction around

          9  the City.

         10                 Despite our strong efforts, the

         11  Liberty Plaza site in Queens, however, has not

         12  advanced as CUNY has not yet committed funding for

         13  the student center that is to be built in

         14  conjunction with the retail center.

         15                 Nevertheless, we are exploring other

         16  options with the Empire State Development

         17  Corporation.

         18                 We are also, of course, continuing to

         19  build and rehabilitate homes throughout the City of

         20  New York to promote home ownership.

         21                 Last July, a request for

         22  qualifications was issued for the next round of

         23  development under the Partnership New Homes Program.

         24  This RFQ includes 27 sites with the development

         25  potential of over 2,300 units in Queens, Brooklyn,
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          2  Manhattan and the Bronx. This latest round alone

          3  represents over $350 million in new home ownership

          4  investment in distressed communities.

          5                 We are designating developers for

          6  these sites within the next month. A number of these

          7  developers may be small contractors who gain

          8  development and financing skills under the

          9  neighborhood builder program.

         10                 To update you on the lead paint

         11  litigation and the implementation of local law 1, at

         12  the end of January, the plaintiffs in the NYCCELP

         13  litigation consented to enter into a stipulation

         14  with the City staying implementation of Local Law 1

         15  until at least April 30th, pending a legislative

         16  solution.

         17                 The agency is anxious to work with

         18  the Council to develop reasonable and safe

         19  legislation to protect the City's children from the

         20  dangers of lead poisoning.

         21                 In the meantime, HPD has continued to

         22  prepare for the law's implementation.

         23                 In Fiscal Year 2000, the agency has

         24  allocated approximately $44 million in Expense and

         25  Capital funding for lead treatments and associated
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          2  costs in both City-owned and privately-owned

          3  buildings.

          4                 The $14 million in Expense money

          5  includes $2 million in tax levy funds that were

          6  added to HPD's expense budget. The agency will use

          7  the expense funding to increase its capacity to

          8  conduct lead testing and treatment in apartments and

          9  private buildings and in the in rem stock.

         10                 On the capital side, 14.1 million

         11  dollars was added to HPD's capital plan.

         12                 This funding will be used for a new

         13  lead paint Hazard Reduction Program. In addition,

         14  $16 million in capital funds will be used to treat

         15  lead in City-owned buildings that are slated for

         16  disposition.

         17                 In Fiscal Year '99, the agency is

         18  projecting it will double spend of lead expense

         19  funds from approximately $5 million to $10 million.

         20  To that end, we have increased the full-time

         21  positions in the lead programs from 48 in June 1998

         22  to 87 for June 1999, by redirecting existing staff

         23  and bringing on 18 new hires.

         24                 In addition to the full-time

         25  headcount, we are in the process of hiring over 80
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          2  per diem and temporary contract staff, including 17

          3  new lead abatement workers in various positions to

          4  facilitate the process.

          5                 The agency is also in the process of

          6  evaluating bids for lead abatement work requirements

          7  contracts. HPD expects to award seven $1 million

          8  requirements contracts within the next several

          9  weeks.

         10                 HPD has also awarded contracts for

         11  lead testing, and is purchasing eight new XRF

         12  instruments with field portable computers.

         13                 This equipment will ensure that

         14  testing and reporting is more accurate.

         15                 On the expense side, the Fiscal Year

         16  2000 expense budget is set at $320 million, $98

         17  million below the forecast for Fiscal Year 1999.

         18                 At the beginning of each fiscal year,

         19  federal grant funds, the majority of which are

         20  Section 8, are scheduled into HPD's budget to fund

         21  current year needs.

         22                 In addition, community development

         23  block grant funds are rolled forward for

         24  unliquidated prior year obligations.

         25                 In Fiscal Year 2000, we anticipate
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          2  that this annual process will translate into

          3  approximately $86 million that will be added back to

          4  HPD's budget after adoption.

          5                 Of the remaining $12 million

          6  difference, approximately $10 million of the

          7  decrease can be attributed to workload re-estimates

          8  or one-time funding in Fiscal Year 1999 for certain

          9  programs that are not contained in the baseline

         10  budget for Fiscal Year 2000 and future fiscal years.

         11                 The workload re-estimates include

         12  resources no longer required for the operation and

         13  maintenance of our in rem stock as a result of our

         14  successful disposition efforts. Programs that are

         15  not contained in the Fiscal Year 2000 baseline

         16  budget include the City Council funding of the

         17  community consultant contracts and legal services

         18  contracts. The balance of the $2 million is

         19  attributable to expenditure reductions effective in

         20  Fiscal Year 2000.

         21                 In the Fiscal Year 2000 budget, our

         22  total headcount is set at 2,714 heads, a 50-person

         23  reduction from our Fiscal Year '99 forecast.

         24                 A significant portion of this

         25  decrease is funded with federal funds, and we
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          2  anticipate sufficient ongoing grant funds in Fiscal

          3  Year 2000 to restore 20 positions. The balance of 30

          4  positions represents reductions effective in FY 2000

          5  that will be achieved through consolidation of

          6  functions, productivity initiatives and attrition.

          7                 At 258, HPD currently employs the

          8  highest number of code inspectors and supervisors

          9  since the state eliminated funding in 1991. 220 of

         10  these are field inspectors, the remainder are

         11  supervisors.

         12                 A recent allocation of City Council

         13  funding is helping to hire three full-time HOB

         14  attorneys and 20 per diem employees, as well as

         15  enough additional inspectors to reach our budgeted

         16  goal of 240.

         17                 These new hires will enable HPD to

         18  focus on increasing the number of false

         19  certification and comprehensive building-wide cases

         20  initiated against owners who consistently fail to

         21  comply with the Housing Maintenance Code.

         22                 This is a critical component of the

         23  agency's anti-abandonment strategy.

         24                 While savings in the outyears will be

         25  generated in these areas through an attrition of

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            30

          1  HOUSING PRESERVATION AND DEVELOPMENT

          2  positions, this will not hinder HPD from providing

          3  its current level of service, which is certainly

          4  adequate.

          5                 In addition, recently implemented

          6  productivity initiatives in the Division of Code

          7  Enforcement have improved the agency's ability to

          8  handle tenant complaints.

          9                 At the beginning of the current

         10  fiscal year, HPD expanded the work week of code

         11  inspectors from 35 to 40 hours per week, as a result

         12  more code inspectors are on duty in the afternoon

         13  and evening when tenants generally tend to be home.

         14                 In addition, code inspectors have

         15  also been provided two-way radios, which allows for

         16  more timely response to emergency complaints.

         17                 Despite these improvements, we still

         18  need an enforcement mechanism with real teeth - one

         19  that has the capacity to punish landlords who have

         20  consistently neglected their maintenance

         21  responsibilities.

         22                 While I have just highlighted many of

         23  HPD's recent achievements, there is still a lot to

         24  look forward to.

         25                 Thank you, members of the City
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          2  Council, for the opportunity to speak with you today

          3  regarding the Preliminary Fiscal Year 2000 budget.

          4                 I would be happy to answer any

          5  questions you might have.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you,

          8  Commissioner, for a very comprehensive report.

          9                 Is the speed at which you delivered

         10  your report because I delayed you in presenting it

         11  and you have got to get out of here?

         12                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: No, no, I am

         13  fine. I am fine.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

         15                 That was a very comprehensive report

         16  and it answered a lot of questions. And you

         17  anticipated a lot of questions and the answers were

         18  rather good.

         19                 Just to peak my curiosity, one that I

         20  have always had a great interest in is the 7A

         21  program, and you used words like "remarkable" in

         22  explaining that program. Can you flesh that out just

         23  a little bit?

         24                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Well, there are

         25  two things that I think we want to really focus on
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          2  from the perspective of the 7A program.

          3                 The first is that, I think in direct

          4  response to many comments that you have made, both

          5  in settings like these and also --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Excuse me,

          7  Commissioner.

          8                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: The 7A program

         10  is one that you appoint an administrator --

         11                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: We don't, the

         12  court does.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Excuse me. To

         14  rescue a distressed building, hopefully return it to

         15  private ownership.

         16                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Right.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: We have had very

         18  little success in doing that. It is usually the last

         19  stop before coming in rem.

         20                 Now, that is why I am interested very

         21  much in --

         22                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Right. And what

         23  I was about to say was that in response to comments

         24  like the one you just made in this setting like

         25  these, and also in meetings that we have had, we try
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          2  to focus on some of the intake, outtake mechanisms,

          3  and are now going to be utilizing Local Law 37 Third

          4  Party Transfer Program in connection with the 7A

          5  Administrator Program, so that we can -- we are

          6  going to be initiating a pilot in the near future

          7  where we will actually be targeting 7A buildings for

          8  Third Party Transfers as a mechanism to actually

          9  move those buildings out of the 7A program into

         10  responsible private ownership.

         11                 The other thing that we have been

         12  working on as a general matter, as you know, is

         13  upgrading the quality of the 7A administrators that

         14  are appointed by the Court, and we have been looking

         15  to a better system of set of prequalified CBOs

         16  not-for-profits that can serve as administrators and

         17  also some for-profit property managers and building

         18  owners to participate in the program.

         19                 Although, obviously the biggest

         20  constraint, and this is the third element of the

         21  remarks, the biggest constraint has been the

         22  resources allocated to the program, and we have

         23  identified additional resources in the capital

         24  program to make available for the maintenance and

         25  rehabilitation of the buildings in the program.
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          2                 So, it is something that we have been

          3  spending some time on, we are trying to improve the

          4  quality of the program, and hopefully when we sit in

          5  the future, maybe this time next year we will be

          6  able to report on some successes that we have had

          7  with the program moving forward.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: It sounds very

          9  encouraging.

         10                 You do have your own training program

         11  for 7A administrators that they have to pass before?

         12                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Right. We do

         13  have a training program, but, quite frankly, we

         14  haven't had much to work with in terms of the

         15  quality of the administrators so the training hasn't

         16  been as effective as we would have liked.

         17                 Let me also mention, Mr. Chairman,

         18  Judy Watt, the Budget Director for the Agency, is

         19  sitting to my right.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I recognize you.

         21                 Go ahead, Council Member.

         22                 (Council Member Michels asks a

         23  question not using the microphone.)

         24                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: I think it is

         25  about 150, if I am not mistaken. Between 150, 160
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          2  buildings.

          3                 I think what we did was we identified

          4  a group of 23 new administrators.

          5                 The thing you have to remember also

          6  is that we are looking now at an intake pipeline of

          7  about 25 buildings per year, so we have got some

          8  work to do in terms of getting an additional cadre

          9  of administrators eligible for the program.

         10                 But we are not talking about the

         11  buildings that are currently in the pipeline, I mean

         12  that are currently in the program. We try to work

         13  with the existing administrators and not upset the

         14  apple cart too much, but then we bring buildings

         15  into the program. Hopefully we are expanding our

         16  compliment of qualified administrators.

         17                 (Council Member Michels asks a

         18  question not using his microphone.)

         19                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Well, I think

         20  that the answer to that is yes, although that won't

         21  be the primary, that won't be the primary focus of

         22  our housing litigation activities.

         23                 One of the things that I think was

         24  important and I was trying to convey and probably

         25  didn't do a very effective job, trying to convey in
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          2  the remarks is that from the perspective of the

          3  anti-abandonment strategy, we are really looking at

          4  now a range or a menu of interventions that we think

          5  are appropriate for distressed buildings.

          6                 In some cases we will be looking at

          7  some education for the owner. In some cases we will

          8  be looking at the 7A Administrator Program. In some

          9  cases we will be looking at comprehensive

         10  building-wide litigation cases.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: That is what

         12  I appreciated in your statement, what you are saying

         13  is the fact that you wanted to get into these

         14  buildings and take them away from the landlords as

         15  soon as possible, before they further deteriorate.

         16                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: We want to try

         17  to identify the appropriate intervention as quickly

         18  as possible. I don't know if it is taking the

         19  building away, or we will determine what is

         20  appropriate. In some cases it may be some financial

         21  assistance to the owner.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Early

         23  intervention is what I --

         24                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Early

         25  intervention.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: The more time

          3  that goes by the more deterioration.

          4                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: That's right.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And the more

          6  it costs you.

          7                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: That's

          8  absolutely right.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Thank you,

         10  Mr. Chair.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: But the goal is

         12  not to take it from the landlord. If you can

         13  stabilize the building and return it to the

         14  landlord, then I would think that would be a more

         15  desirable goal than taking it from the landlord.

         16                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: There are a

         17  range of -- what we want to have is a range of

         18  options, if you will. I mean, the way I like to

         19  think of it is like a primary care clinic for a

         20  building, where once we identify the building and

         21  the problem, then we can figure out the

         22  intervention, we can write the proper diagnosis,

         23  whether it is a loan, whether it is education.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: But the 7A

         25  designation is not a taking?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: No.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: It is an interim

          4  step.

          5                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: It is an

          6  interim step, but in many cases it will be the

          7  appropriate -- taking the building will be the

          8  appropriate mechanism.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: That is the

         10  history of the program.

         11                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: That's right.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: It is the

         13  last step. When you said, Mr. Chairman, the

         14  deterioration, that the last step is an 7A

         15  administrator.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Let me introduce

         17  the members who are here.

         18                 In addition to Council Member Michels

         19  we have Council Member Provenzano and Council Member

         20  Boyland, and non-members, Council Member Eldridge,

         21  Council Member Robles, the Whip for the Council, and

         22  Council Member Pinkett and Council Member Eristoff,

         23  and Council Member Linares.

         24                 One quick question. As it relates to

         25  the legal services funding, once again the budget,
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          2  in this budget there is no funding for anti-illegal

          3  evictions and SRO legal services. In the past the

          4  Administration testified that these services are

          5  available from the Human Resources Administration.

          6  Isn't it true, however, that the HRA funding only

          7  provides legal services for individuals who are HRA

          8  clients? And we go through this every year.

          9                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Yes, we go

         10  through it every year. I don't think that that -- I

         11  don't think that that is specifically correct.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And again, there

         13  is no money for community consultants.

         14                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Yes, we I think

         15  go through this exercise frequently. I think our

         16  position is that as we look at the budget and need

         17  to make determinations as to funding priorities,

         18  that our position is that we allocate the money in

         19  other ways. I think the Council has traditionally

         20  taken a different view with respect to that, and so

         21  we are in the same --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And so it will

         23  be again this year.

         24                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: We are in the

         25  same position this year.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

          3                 Council Member, of the Committee,

          4  Council Member Boyland is the first member to ask

          5  questions.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Followed by

          8  non-members Eldridge, Pinkett and Robles.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Thank you,

         10  Mr. Commissioner. It is a very comprehensive plan,

         11  your statement that you brought forward.

         12                 I have a couple of questions. I have

         13  worked very closely with the office in terms of a

         14  lot of things that are going on in Bedford

         15  Stuyvesant in may area. The first question I have is

         16  about the Anti-Abandonment Program. It helps to

         17  identify some of the programs and the houses that

         18  are dilapidated in our community; are you closely

         19  working with the CBOs on that in terms of

         20  identifying being able to do that? Or do you have

         21  someone in your office that is going out to all of

         22  Brooklyn, Manhattan --

         23                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: We essentially

         24  do it through two mechanisms. We have our

         25  Neighborhood Anti-Abandonment Offices, which are
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          2  linked both programmatically and in terms of

          3  location with the Neighborhood Planning Offices that

          4  many of the members are familiar with.

          5                 And then secondly, we have the groups

          6  that work with us under the Neighborhood

          7  Preservation Consultant Program that actually do go

          8  out and do a lot of work in that regard.

          9                 So, those are the two mechanisms that

         10  in local communities people would be familiar with.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: And I would

         12  like to see more in the community-based organization

         13  program, because it is sort of like a feeder in

         14  terms of keeping them stabilized in terms of moving

         15  on and identifying these buildings, because of

         16  course they are closer.

         17                 Second, you mentioned the Safe At

         18  Home communities program, you are working with the

         19  79th Precinct, and I know you were doing some work

         20  also with the 81st Precinct; exactly how does that

         21  program work in terms of identifying buildings that

         22  are drug-infested?

         23                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: What we are

         24  trying to do with the program is to really bring to

         25  light what we know is true, which is that when you
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          2  combine not only the -- it is not only law

          3  enforcement and quality of life strategies that work

          4  in terms of improving our neighborhoods and

          5  improving the quality of life, but also the

          6  rehabilitation of properties, and public investment

          7  also provides a very good basis for improving

          8  neighborhoods.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: City-owned

         10  buildings that you know, you find out through the

         11  precinct have been used as drug --

         12                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Right. And

         13  essentially what we are doing is we are taking all

         14  of the programs which you would be familiar, not

         15  only the rehabilitation programs with City-owned

         16  buildings, but also the programs such as the

         17  Partnership New Homes Program where we build on

         18  vacant lots, build home ownership housing on vacant

         19  lots, and focusing that in areas where the NYPD has

         20  a focus in terms of quality of life and crime

         21  reduction, and we think we are going to see dramatic

         22  improvements in local neighborhoods.

         23                 One of the things that I referenced

         24  in my testimony was not only the fact that our

         25  Narcotics Control Unit has been very effective in
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          2  working in City-owned buildings in terms of trying

          3  to reclaim vacant apartments that are underutilized,

          4  privately-owned buildings now, and this is the first

          5  time that we are actually trying to lend our

          6  expertise at NCU with the -- in the private-owned

          7  housing market as well.

          8                 So, working with owners, trying to

          9  give owners education about how they can reclaim

         10  apartments, a lot of times private owners don't have

         11  the information or the expertise to try to identify

         12  how they can reclaim vacant buildings, vacant

         13  apartments or units that are underutilized because

         14  those are really the units that are very inviting

         15  for the criminal activity and anti-social behavior.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Right. And my

         17  last question and my most famous issue, and I am

         18  glad Jim is here -- Hi, Jim -- the Anchor Program.

         19                 I know we are working on, we are just

         20  about in the final phase of Ralph Avenue and Fulton

         21  Street on the Anchor Program. When will we be moving

         22  into Saratoga, the next phase of Saratoga and Fulton

         23  in terms of doing the Anchor Program?

         24                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: That is a

         25  question for our Planning Department. We are at the
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          2  point now where we are just very happy we are able

          3  to complete construction and are tenanting (sic)

          4  that project at Fulton and Ralph.

          5                 We allocated some additional capital

          6  money in the budget for the Anchor Program, and

          7  additional $5.5 million, and so now we have to look

          8  at what areas would be appropriate for funding.

          9                 I know that --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: In what way

         11  --

         12                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: That is part of

         13  the earlier round, but we now need to look at where

         14  we would spend money for the second round of the

         15  program.

         16                 The question about Fulton Street,

         17  moving further down Fulton Street is a question we

         18  need to start having some conversations with the

         19  local community group out there, your office, and

         20  figure out what we might be able to do, and what

         21  might serve as a catalyst for -- whether the current

         22  development might serve as a catalyst for some

         23  additional work on Fulton Street.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: I also help

         25  we can throw in Atlantic Avenue in terms of bringing
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          2  some development on that piece of property there,

          3  because it is a major thoroughfare on the way back

          4  to Queens, Manhattan --

          5                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay, thank

          7  you very much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you.

          9                 Members, please limit yourselves to

         10  five minutes for questions and answers.

         11                 Next we now go to Council Member

         12  Eldridge.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

         14                 I notice that when you talk about new

         15  hires, most of them are per diems. What is the total

         16  number of per diems in your agency?

         17                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: We will get

         18  that information for you.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Go ahead.

         20                 MS. WATT: We currently have 209 --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Pardon me,

         22  Madame. Would you introduce yourself for the record,

         23  so we all know who you are. You have a nice face and

         24  a nice voice but we won't know you.

         25                 MS. WATT: My name is Judy Watt, I am
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          2  the Budget Director.

          3                 We have 209 per diems currently.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: And the

          5  total number of proposed new hires that are per

          6  diems comes to about? You are going to hire per diem

          7  attorneys you said in your testimony?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: And lead

          9  abatement.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: And lead

         11  abatement? Do you know how many in the proposed

         12  budget?

         13                 MS. WATT: I would have to check on

         14  that.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Why do you

         16  hire per diems, rather than regular employees?

         17                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Well, I think

         18  it gives us more flexibility in terms of the

         19  management of the programs.

         20                 I mean, we have, with this number

         21  here we have 209 per diems relative to a total

         22  funded headcount of 2,700. So, there are certain

         23  areas where the management of the program requires

         24  flexibility. Certainly there have been several

         25  discussions back and forth with the Council about
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          2  the lead paint abatement program, and how we are

          3  going to -- how that is going to be managed going

          4  forward. There is a lot of uncertainty with that,

          5  given the fact that we have a -- there are a lot of

          6  questions about the final implementation of Local

          7  Law 1, what that is going to look like, and several

          8  issues going forward.

          9                 So, that is why --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Does that

         11  mean that you don't estimate they will even be there

         12  for a year? Are they paid the same rate that other

         13  permanent employees are paid?

         14                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: It all depends

         15  on the particular program and per diem. But I don't

         16  what the anticipated length of stay for the lead

         17  paint workers are.

         18                 Certainly also --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: You have --

         20                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Can I finish

         21  this sentence?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Yes. Sure.

         23                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Certainly in

         24  the course of the per diems that we are now talking

         25  about bringing on, or the per diems that we have
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          2  currently in the budget, a lot of the work that we

          3  do is seasonal. The heat and hot water season, for

          4  example, only lasts for a certain number of months,

          5  and many of the per diems that we hire in the normal

          6  course of business include the staffing of our

          7  Central Complaint Bureau, or increased staffing

          8  rather of our Central Complaint Bureau, which is a

          9  seasonal activity.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: I don't want

         11  to take my time by looking through your testimony,

         12  but it seems to me you are hiring attorneys on a per

         13  diem.

         14                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Yes, three

         15  attorneys.

         16                 There are nine new attorneys in the

         17  HLB, in the HLB area. Three of them are contract

         18  attorneys and six of them are permanent.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: I notice it

         20  is a trend in the City Administration, and part of

         21  the reason I think is that they are not counted in

         22  headcount, and other things. So it is not just your

         23  agency that is doing that.

         24                 Do you consider SRO stock as stock

         25  that needs to be protected? And if you do, in your
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          2  question of conversions and abandonment, what are we

          3  doing to protect the SRO units?

          4                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Well, we work

          5  with the Department of Buildings, we have a

          6  compliment of inspectors that work in the conversion

          7  area.

          8                 We do a significant amount of work in

          9  connection with certificates of no harassment. And

         10  also the Housing Litigation Bureau is also very

         11  active in the discharge of those duties as well.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: But one of

         13  the outstanding cases, for instance, is Simmons

         14  House is now a transient hotel, a tourist hotel,

         15  which Corp Counsel is now suing whose hearing you

         16  have been having but the hotel was already

         17  converted. So, it would seem to me, just looking at

         18  this case shows a need to change something, yet your

         19  SRO unit, do you still have an SRO?

         20                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: We do. And

         21  historically the certificate of no harassment cases,

         22  I mean if the question relates to the length of time

         23  that certificate of no harassment takes, the length

         24  of time that these cases take, historically these

         25  cases have always taken a considerable amount of
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          2  time. There are complicated findings of fact that

          3  are involved in the cases, and so it is an issue,

          4  but it has historically been one.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: How many

          6  people work in the SRO unit now?

          7                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: I don't know, I

          8  will have to get that number.

          9                 Eight people assigned to that unit.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Eight people

         11  assigned to it?

         12                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: And could

         14  you break them down in personnel?

         15                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: We will get

         16  that breakdown for you, yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Can we have

         18  it now?

         19                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: We will get it,

         20  yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: I am a

         22  member of the Economic Development Committee --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: It's your last

         24  question, Council Member.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: I am not on
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          2  this Committee, but can you explain to me the Anchor

          3  Program which seems to me to be commercial

          4  revitalization, commercial economic development

          5  project, why that is in HPD and not in business

          6  services? Or how do you decide when a project goes

          7  to you or to Economic Development Corporation or to

          8  the Business Services Department?

          9                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Yes, the theory

         10  behind the Anchor Program was that there needed to

         11  be a combination of combined investment in terms of

         12  Housing and Economic Development, that in order to

         13  completely stabilize and revitalize neighborhoods,

         14  that housing needed to be coupled with Economic

         15  Development activity at the local level.

         16                 As a planning exercise and process,

         17  we identified the Anchor corridors in those areas

         18  where HPD had already made a significant investment

         19  in terms of Housing.

         20                 Many of the sites, if not all of the

         21  sites where the development activity occurs, is on

         22  sites that were under HPD's control, either because

         23  we had acquired the property through tax foreclosure

         24  or what have you.

         25                 It was an attempt to try to be
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          2  innovative to couple the economic development with

          3  the housing activity under the auspices of the

          4  housing agency.

          5                 It is an idea, quite frankly, that

          6  has taken root at the federal level, certainly the

          7  Hope Six Program that HUD is advancing only PHAs,

          8  Public Housing Authority, are eligible for Hope Six

          9  money and that is a combination of housing and

         10  commercial revitalization, as well. It is kind of a

         11  new thinking in terms of economic development policy

         12  to try to more closely align the housing with the

         13  economic development.

         14                 Many of the local groups, for

         15  example, not-for-profits that we are working with,

         16  are the same groups that are involved on the housing

         17  end and so forth.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: How many

         19  people work in that unit?

         20                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: It is part of

         21  our development program, so there isn't a specific

         22  breakout. The same people that do new construction

         23  in our development office are the same people that

         24  are working on the Anchor Program.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

          4  Pinkett.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Good morning,

          6  Commissioner.

          7                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Hi. How are

          8  you?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: I will not

         10  take a lot of time to ask questions, I would like to

         11  simply thank the Chair for allowing non-members to

         12  participate in this discussion.

         13                 I was interested in your comment on

         14  the 7A administrators. My understanding was that of

         15  course even in the past 7A administrators had to

         16  have the approval of HPD, many of them that I met

         17  over the years seemed to have been people who came

         18  from the community, got involved because of the fact

         19  of their concerns for housing stock in which they

         20  lived. So, I was quite concerned about the fact that

         21  HPD had a problem now perhaps in finding people of

         22  worth.

         23                 I also can recall an instance where

         24  going through the court, which is not a new

         25  practice, where a development that had been fighting
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          2  for years with the landlord to maintain their

          3  building according to the standard in which they

          4  were used to living in, where the tenants had

          5  maintained that building, and yet, the landlord was

          6  able to take them into court in terms of the fiscal

          7  responsibility, and the judge was appointing a 7A

          8  administrator. And they were able to prove they had

          9  a 7A administrator from among the tenant population,

         10  their elected tenant leadership, and they had in the

         11  bank in excess of $7,000, they said but you have to

         12  have signers, co-signers, you must have at least

         13  three. They said we have four. They still appointed

         14  a public administrator.

         15                 Are we going to have regulations that

         16  protect people of that kind of disposition so that

         17  they will be involved, will not be pushed out, and

         18  able to work with HPD in order to protect buildings

         19  of that sort?

         20                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: We don't have

         21  any plans to promulgate new regulations or rules in

         22  connection with the 7A program. I am not familiar

         23  with the situation that you --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: This is in

         25  Crown Heights.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: -- Describe.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: This is a

          4  Crown Heights building, it was beautiful when they

          5  moved in, it was beautiful when it went to court.

          6                 And the other part that concerns me,

          7  when we talked about landlords and those who had not

          8  -- you are not taking property, I don't want you to

          9  take property, but if you are going to subsidize

         10  landlords, would the record or the history of the

         11  landlord be considered before you give them a

         12  subsidy? They have longstanding records in more than

         13  one building where they have not properly maintained

         14  good accommodation for tenants.

         15                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Yes, we take

         16  into consideration the record of the tenantiveness

         17  of the landlord. As certainly you know, the way the

         18  authorizing statutes are written, certainly if you

         19  had a building taken away from you as a result of

         20  your failure to meet obligations, you are not

         21  eligible for participation in the program. So,

         22  obviously you are referring to a range of situations

         23  here, not just the taking but activity below that.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Sometimes it

         25  takes a long time to take it, but the history of
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          2  court actions, the history of neglect certainly is

          3  established, and it would seem to me that person

          4  would not deserve our help.

          5                 My other question would be in terms

          6  of the combining of neighborhood and commercial

          7  property.

          8                 I can understand in many of our

          9  communities we complain about construction and the

         10  lack of commercial entities that are necessary. I am

         11  concerned about the imposition of commercial

         12  properties that are not necessary for that

         13  community, and the fact that HPD may seem to be the

         14  imposer of the commercial property, rather than the

         15  party who says this is what we want to do. And that

         16  sort of troubles me.

         17                 If there are two agencies who have

         18  this as their concern, it would appear to me that

         19  they could make that pitch. But it does not seem to

         20  me correct that HPD should be the one who says, you

         21  want this? You got to buy this and this and this and

         22  this, because you are holding a community hostage

         23  and I don't think HPD would want to tarnish the

         24  record in that fashion.

         25                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Yes, don't want
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          2  to take any hostages, no.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: That's right.

          4  It should not be a hostage agency.

          5                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Right.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Would you

          7  agree?

          8                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: I would agree.

          9  Although, I would say that certainly we try as best

         10  we can to try to accommodate and involve the

         11  preferences and interests of the local community,

         12  local neighborhoods.

         13                 Sometimes that is not possible, but

         14  we still have an obligation to try to provide,

         15  whether it is affordable housing opportunities or

         16  whether it is the allocation of money that we are

         17  responsible for allocating, or whether it is trying

         18  to create jobs and economic opportunities.

         19                 Every now and then those interests

         20  come into conflict and we have to balance that as

         21  best we can.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: It was none

         23  of the above, okay?

         24                 Thank you so much.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you.
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          2                 Council Member Provenzano.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

          5  Robles, sorry. I have one list for members and one

          6  for non-members, I should have a special list for

          7  the Majority Whip.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Thank you, Mr.

          9  Chairman.

         10                 Commissioner, it is nice to see you.

         11  How is the baby?

         12                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Good.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Let me just

         14  before I ask my question pick up on Council Member

         15  Boyland, because the Anchor happens to be shared,

         16  and I want to make clear I understand.

         17                 You are saying phase 2, when you are

         18  saying money, does that mean that phase 1 and

         19  whatever was there is up and running?

         20                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: No, not in

         21  every case.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Maybe rather

         23  than just piecemeal, because I am part of that, and

         24  I must tell you, the last time we sat with the

         25  Commissioner on the status, maybe it is about time
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          2  we get brought back into the table and walk through

          3  on the status of the Anchors, because I am happy to

          4  see my colleague's new member talk about a location,

          5  I would love to see me as a senior member say that

          6  in Bushwick and Broadway strip, maybe we should have

          7  a status on that.

          8                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: We are happy to

          9  have a status on it. We haven't made any commitments

         10  on new funding. Certainly the areas that your

         11  colleague mentioned are interesting areas and we

         12  talk with people about areas all the time.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Okay.

         14                 Let me just perhaps wear my hat as

         15  the Chairman of the Health Committee for the moment,

         16  and there is an area that I as new chair am

         17  monitoring and keeping an aye on and that is the

         18  lead paint scenario.

         19                 So, let me go on the capital side for

         20  the moment, because in this plan it has $38 million

         21  in this plan. However, in FY '96, the Council

         22  appropriated $8.5 million into that of which I just

         23  am told that it is just recently where a contract

         24  was let out by your agency.

         25                 Number one, that contract, is that
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          2  in-house or is that contracted out?

          3                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: I believe that

          4  is contracted out.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Okay, can we

          6  just, of course, to the chair and then pass it on to

          7  me, is who is it? How is it going to work?

          8                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Right.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES:  And is that

         10  the $8.5 million that was in the capital budget that

         11  still sits in the capital budget?

         12                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: I believe that

         13  is so.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Now, in that

         15  contract, is it a contract for 8.5? Or what is the

         16  contract for?

         17                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: I don't know.

         18  We will get the information. We will get the

         19  information about that.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Okay.

         21                 Now that that is that, there is $38

         22  million in this plan which is new. Again, can you

         23  walk us through about what are the plans?

         24                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Right.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: What are you
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          2  going to do with it, because now you are talking

          3  about much more than 8.5.

          4                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Yes. Well, we

          5  haven't finalized the plans for the distribution of

          6  the funds. We certainly anticipate that something

          7  will be necessary, but we, quite frankly, it is a

          8  little difficult to speak in specifics about what we

          9  are going to do until we clear up what the final

         10  determination is going to be on Local Law 1.

         11                 We had a situation where the

         12  litigation had run its course. We had a hearing

         13  several months ago in front of this body where we

         14  talked about the fact that, among other things

         15  Commissioner Cohen and I testified jointly, we

         16  talked about the public health risks and so on and

         17  so forth, and then we said that we were hopeful that

         18  some resolution or compromise would be worked out.

         19                 The court has given us until April

         20  30th, I believe, to resolve our differences on local

         21  law 1 and the implementation of Local Law 1 and also

         22  the proposal, the piece of legislation that Council

         23  Member Michels has advanced.

         24                 We have made some comments on that,

         25  that is where we stand now at this point.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: If I may, and,

          3  again, I need to clear this, because I am not a

          4  lawyer, but if there is pending litigation which now

          5  has stopped local law 1, forget about whatever

          6  future amendments to local -- the fact is local law

          7  1 is in place, is the law, and if you are saying to

          8  me that there is pending litigation, how does this

          9  8.5 million and this contract, how can you proceed

         10  with that when there is still this question of

         11  whether -- how to move forward on Local Law 1?

         12                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Well, there are

         13  a lot of questions, and the litigation isn't

         14  pending. The implementation of the litigation, the

         15  final result implementation, is stayed pending a

         16  compromise, a negotiated compromise.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: You are

         18  compromising on what?

         19                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: We are

         20  compromising on the law, as to whether we can come

         21  up with a new piece of legislation.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: My question

         23  is, new piece is what is going to happen tomorrow.

         24  The fact is currently there is a law. Currently it

         25  is a violation of law when it comes to lead
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          2  painting. I am just trying to get a handle because

          3  this 8.5 was put into the budget in '96, it is just

          4  now where I am told that the first contract is being

          5  let out.

          6                 My question is -- but then in this

          7  plan there is new appropriation of funds in the

          8  capital for $38 million. Now, I just need to know

          9  what are we doing? How are we going to use, spend in

         10  what areas, what purpose, the 8.5?

         11                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Right.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: I want to stay

         13  away from the --

         14                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: We are doing it

         15  through --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: The

         17  litigation, which maybe might have an impact on the

         18  $38 million, but if there is a stay, what makes the

         19  8.5 or this contract -- what waiver did you get that

         20  you can move forward, if you are telling me that

         21  this --

         22                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: We are free,

         23  Council Member, to abate lead paint. Whether we do

         24  it because we think it is a good idea or whether we

         25  do it consistent with current law or whether we do
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          2  it in consistent with Local Law 1 or its successor.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Okay.

          4                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: We are free to

          5  abate lead paint and we can do that in the context

          6  of our inspectoral activities or our loan programs

          7  or what have you.

          8                 We would utilize the 8.5 in

          9  connection with our current programs which include a

         10  primary prevention program, which include a lead

         11  grant that we receive from the federal government,

         12  which would include our loan programs, so on and so

         13  forth.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Okay, may I

         15  respectfully ask you through the chair, of which he

         16  will then pass on to me, on the 8.5, since there is

         17  a contract, I want to know who has it, how much

         18  money, what is it we are going to do.

         19                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: I hope that

         20  between now, Mr. Chairman, and when we adopt the

         21  June Budget, or at least the FY 2000, which is what

         22  we have before us, there is an additional $38

         23  million in the capital side. In fairness I think we

         24  should not be voting upon something that is there,

         25  and we know how much, but we don't know for what
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          2  purpose and I just point out that we did this in

          3  '96, sir, and we put 8.5. This is Fiscal Year '99

          4  where finally we are now moving, I hope we don't get

          5  caught up again for the next fiscal year that maybe

          6  some of us won't be around to see our fruits and our

          7  labors, but I am just concerned with the fact that

          8  either we are going to do it or we are not. And if

          9  you say we are not, listen, I don't have to accept

         10  it, but I have to live with the reality.

         11                 I just don't want to keep, as

         12  Chairman of the Health Committee, this notion that

         13  we are doing something, that we are protecting our

         14  children and every year I see the numbers keep

         15  growing and growing and growing, especially in areas

         16  where anchors happen to be like Bushwick and Bedford

         17  Stuyvesant, and I think it is about time we start

         18  dealing with it and get away from the law, what is

         19  going to be, what is not, the law is clear - the

         20  protection of our children's health comes first, and

         21  I think that should not stop anybody from moving

         22  ahead.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you, Mr.

         25  Majority Whip.
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          2                 Council Member Linares.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Thank you,

          4  Mr. Chair.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Excuse me. I

          6  scratched Provenzano, I lost my head.

          7                 Council Member Provenzano, followed

          8  by Council Member Linares.

          9                 Sorry.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Thank you,

         11  Mr. Chairman.

         12                 Good morning.

         13                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Hi.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I would

         15  like to go back to the 7A just for a minute.

         16                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Sure.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: To be sure

         18  I understood. I had the feeling, and correct me if I

         19  am wrong, that the new program which was offered to

         20  people to bring in new 7A administrators, that those

         21  people that participate in that program may be kind

         22  of on hold, and I will tell you why.

         23                 I have two instances in my area of

         24  one person who has applied -- it involves absentee

         25  landlords, and he has applied to be 7A for this
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          2  building, and I also have a not-for-profit, an LDC,

          3  where two people in that group have been trained as

          4  7A's and trying to move on something and it is not

          5  happening.

          6                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Well, it is not

          7  generally on hold, I am not familiar with the

          8  circumstances that you mentioned. I can certainly

          9  get more information for you and find out what is,

         10  either what is taking so long or what the issue is.

         11                 Obviously we have got the role of the

         12  Housing Court in this process as well, so the

         13  question arises as to whether the court, or how the

         14  court is making its appointment or what have you,

         15  but I will be happy to find out what is going on

         16  with both situations.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay, I

         18  would appreciate that.

         19                 Also, in reading your testimony, I am

         20  interested in this purchaser pool.

         21                 I have a young man, now I don't know

         22  if this relates to him, it may, who is interested in

         23  buying, he is a future entrepreneur, for the first

         24  time a multiple dwelling, six units, ten units, or

         25  whatever; would this type of program relate to him?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Well, if you

          3  have someone that is interested in purchasing a

          4  building, or getting involved in the process, all

          5  that person needs to do is sit with our Office of

          6  Development and they can go through the various

          7  programs in which someone or an entity can

          8  participate and we would be happy to involve them.

          9                 There are a number of different ways

         10  that people can get involved.  If they are

         11  interested in a Neighborhood Entrepreneurship

         12  Program, for example, that might be an appropriate

         13  situation.

         14                 If they are interested in what I have

         15  referenced in the testimony, I believe that the

         16  deadline for qualification for people under that

         17  program, under the Party Transfer Program has

         18  passed. Although we will be doing future rounds and

         19  we can get -- it is generally a good idea for people

         20  to come in, get the information so that they can

         21  anticipate what is going to be coming available and

         22  they are kind of getting all of their ducks in a

         23  row, if you will.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Now, for a

         25  first-time buyer in this situation, you do have
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          2  informational programs or training programs?

          3                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Absolutely.

          4  Absolutely, yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: And we

          6  would contact?

          7                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: You would

          8  contact Deputy Commissioner Reminisky, if you are

          9  interested in -- if someone is just interested in

         10  getting exposure to how to access the programs. If

         11  they want some information about the programs

         12  themselves, they can speak with the Office of

         13  Development, and that is Deputy Commissioner Hardy,

         14  H-a-r-d-y.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I have one

         16  more little question. In a manner that I have become

         17  interested in, I think belatedly, but in the --

         18  there is a comment here about your agency requesting

         19  $800,000 for computer services related to Year 2000

         20  computer problems. Does that mean you are basically

         21  set, ready to go and you just need this to kind of

         22  -- or does that mean you are now starting to be

         23  concerned about it?

         24                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: No, I think

         25  that is just in connection with some of the
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          2  remediation of some programs that we have to take

          3  care of.

          4                 We are anticipating that we are going

          5  to meet all of the deadlines and time frames that

          6  are outlined by both the Mayor's Office of

          7  Operations, the Year 2000 project that is there, and

          8  we are very hopeful that when the City Comptroller

          9  finishes their review of our Year 2000 readiness,

         10  that we will get a good bill of health in that

         11  regard.

         12                 We worked very hard over the course

         13  of the last several months. We started, six to eight

         14  months ago I think we were an agency that I would

         15  say would have been on a critical list, but we have

         16  worked hard to move forward.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you.

         19                 Council Member Linares.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Good morning,

         22  Commissioner.

         23                 I want to ask you a couple of

         24  questions about inspectors. It is my understanding

         25  -- inspectors, code inspectors.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            71

          1  HOUSING PRESERVATION AND DEVELOPMENT

          2                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Okay.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: It is my

          4  understanding that you have hired 13 additional

          5  inspectors in the past week or so, is that accurate?

          6                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Yes, I think

          7  that that is right.

          8                 We have been trying to get from a

          9  budgeted headcount of -- our goal is to get to 240

         10  inspectors and we have been working towards that

         11  goal.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: So you have

         13  13. Are you delayed in hiring the others? How many

         14  more?

         15                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Well, I think

         16  we need to get an additional 20 over where we are

         17  now. This is just in terms of inspectors, this is

         18  not supervisory staff, but I think we need to get an

         19  additional 20.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: And what is

         21  the process of hiring the additional 20?

         22                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Excuse me? Yes,

         23  we have initiated the process and we think it will

         24  be fine.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Okay.
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          2                 The question is, what type of

          3  training are these new inspectors receiving?

          4                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Well, there is

          5  a training program that we monitor and provide in

          6  terms of writing violations and assessing the

          7  conditions in buildings, making the proper

          8  determinations as to the Housing Maintenance Code,

          9  and also the proper referrals, whether it is a

         10  referral to the Department of Buildings for

         11  structural issues or what have you.

         12                 There is an extensive training

         13  program that is involved. I have sat in on a number

         14  of training programs through the agency. I haven't

         15  sat in on that particular program specifically, so

         16  we can get you some information about the training

         17  curriculum and so on and so forth.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: This is

         19  internal training that we have?

         20                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: What are the

         22  qualifications? Do you have difficulties hiring

         23  inspectors?

         24                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: No.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: What are the
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          2  qualifications.

          3                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: You will have

          4  to come up.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Would you please

          6  identify yourself so we can get it on the record?

          7  These are recorded proceedings, and if you don't

          8  identify yourself and speak into the mic --

          9                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: He is the head

         10  of the inspectors, so he is just used to jumping in

         11  there.

         12                 Assistant Commissioner Vito

         13  Mustacello.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MUSTACELLO: My

         15  name is Vito Mustacello, I am the Assistant

         16  Commissioner for Code Enforcement.

         17                 In answer to that, the qualifications

         18  are five years of construction-related experience.

         19  Currently we are calling inspectors off of the civil

         20  service list.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Commissioner,

         22  how are these inspectors, how will they be deployed?

         23                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Well, we make

         24  -- we have deployment on -- the new ones or the

         25  existing inspectors?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: The new ones.

          3                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: We deploy

          4  inspectors on a boroughwide basis and then we also

          5  have specialized, a specialized unit that operates

          6  out of Manhattan but is Citywide, is a Citywide

          7  unit.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: In terms of

          9  self-certification, do you contemplate that you

         10  would use some of these new inspectors to address

         11  some of those needs?

         12                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Well, all of

         13  the inspectors deal with issues of -- deal with

         14  self-certification issues, so I guess the answer to

         15  that would be yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: How about the

         17  comprehensive violations that exist within

         18  buildings? Which is another area of great need.

         19                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: In terms of

         20  inspectors?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Yes.

         22                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Yes, inspectors

         23  deal with those issues as well.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Okay.

         25                 Thank you very much.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: In line with the

          3  35 to 40 hours, how have you compensating? They are

          4  paid an addition five hours for the week, or

          5  additional ten hours per pay period, at regular

          6  time, or is it time and a half or what is the

          7  arrangement?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MUSTACELLO:

          9  Actually, the result of the additional five hours

         10  was through a negotiation with the union for a pay

         11  increase.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Is it five times

         13  whatever the hourly rate is? Or is there a five

         14  hours plus, some consideration?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MUSTACELLO:

         16  Well, their pay is based on a 40-hour work week.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MUSTACELLO:

         19  They received an increase --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Commensurate

         21  with the number of hours?

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MUSTACELLO:

         23  Exactly.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

         25  Michels.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Vito, don't

          3  leave.

          4                 On the issue of the inspectors, could

          5  you give me an idea, including the response to heat

          6  violations, especially when you get cold weather, so

          7  you have any records as far as what the response

          8  time is between the time a complaint is made and the

          9  time your inspectors get out there and to determine

         10  the violation?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MUSTACELLO: We

         12  don't track that number. We don't have a specific

         13  number for you in a tracking report.

         14                 But we are still consistent with a

         15  response to a heat complaint of 24 to 48 hours.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: But you have

         17  no records of that?

         18                 You don't track the -- every other

         19  agency where we have inspectors and when we have

         20  complaints, we would like to know, for purposes of

         21  to see how efficient the agency is, as to whether or

         22  not we need more inspectors or not, in the time that

         23  it takes between a phone call of a complaint by a

         24  citizen, to the time we get inspectors out there.

         25  And I understand the heat complaints take priority
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          2  and especially during the heating season, but may I

          3  suggest, Commissioner, that we start tracking this

          4  and getting an idea where we stand?

          5                 I don't know how the report of the

          6  Mayor's Department of --

          7                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Yes, we will

          8  take a look at whether tracking it would be useful

          9  or not.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Don't you

         11  think it would be useful to determine whether or not

         12  they are out there on time, and the people are

         13  getting the services that they need?

         14                 If I call in a heat complaint and it

         15  takes three days before the inspector gets out

         16  there, even though you are saying it is within the

         17  24 or 48 hours, which is very good --

         18                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Right.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I have no

         20  reason to believe there is a problem, but I think in

         21  order to judge the efficiency of the inspector

         22  division, the code enforcement division of your

         23  agency, we ought to have some sort of records as to

         24  how long it takes to comply with complaints.

         25                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Yes, we will
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          2  take a look at that.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I really

          4  think it would be important to the Mayor's -- what

          5  is that report we are doing?

          6                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: The Mayor's

          7  Management Report?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: The Mayor's

          9  Management Report. And that is something I am going

         10  to be looking at in the Mayor's Management Report.

         11                 Now, the other thing is the false

         12  certification, which was just raised, could you get

         13  any determination in Fiscal '98 and so far in '99,

         14  how many false certifications there were? And what

         15  percentage of these certifications are false? Do we

         16  have any record to that?

         17                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: No.

         18                 ASSISTANCE COMMISSIONER MUSTACELLO:

         19  Well, if I can, again, the word "false

         20  certification; it is not necessarily a false

         21  certification, okay?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: It is not my

         23  term. It is the term that is being used in the

         24  agency.

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MUSTACELLO:
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          2  Right.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: The

          4  Commissioner mentions it in his statement on page

          5  12.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MUSTACELLO:

          7  Right.

          8                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: The fact that I

          9  mentioned it, the issue is that false certification

         10  involves a significant number of scenarios which --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Any way you

         12  want to define it is fine with me.

         13                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: -- Is broader

         14  than just someone willfully misleading about whether

         15  or not they have made the repairs or not.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Well, the

         17  allegation is that it was willful, and then the

         18  determination as to whether or not it was willful or

         19  not is made by your agency, as determined.

         20                 But how would you define false

         21  certification? What are the categories of false

         22  certification?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MUSTACELLO:

         24  Well, when an inspector conducts an inspection, if

         25  the condition has not been corrected, that could
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          2  mean that the owner has attempted to make the

          3  correction, but the corrections were not sufficient

          4  to meet the code --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: In other

          6  words, the first thing you have to find out is

          7  whether or not the owner certified that the

          8  correction was made?

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MUSTACELLO:

         10  Correct.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And then you

         12  go out to check on it?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MUSTACELLO:

         14  Right.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And then you

         16  determine whether or not that certification is

         17  correct or not?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MUSTACELLO: If

         19  the conditions were corrected, right.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Corrected or

         21  not, or as some people say, well, it was corrected

         22  and then afterwards it was uncorrected.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MUSTACELLO: It

         24  could be a recurring --

         25                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: It could have
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          2  been corrected and could have reoccurred.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: That is

          4  something you have got to determine, depending on

          5  the situation.

          6                 But can you tell me how many false

          7  certifications claims were made by the agency?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MUSTACELLO:

          9  Well, from Fiscal Year '99 through January on the

         10  self-certification program we reinspected 81.6

         11  percent of all self-certifications.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: What did you

         13  determine as far as the self-certification is

         14  concerned?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MUSTACELLO:

         16  Thirty-three percent.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Thirty-three

         18  percent.

         19                 How about the previous fiscal year?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: What was the

         21  nature of the false certification?

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MUSTACELLO:

         23  Well, again, it would range from the conditions

         24  reoccurred. It could be a tenant-caused violation,

         25  in which case the condition could reoccur. It could
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          2  mean that the owner attempted to make corrections

          3  but were not to the satisfaction of the Department,

          4  or it could just mean that the owner did not make

          5  the corrections at all.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: It's a whole

          7  range.

          8                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: A whole range,

          9  right.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: But it is not

         11  determined -- they are listed as false

         12  certifications.

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MUSTACELLO:

         14  Well, in that case the violation would remain open

         15  --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: How do you

         17  determine what category it falls under, the

         18  categories you just mentioned?

         19                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: We don't.

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MUSTACELLO: We

         21  don't. It just gets classified into that one

         22  category.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: There is a

         24  penalty of perjury under false certification.

         25  Certification implies that somebody has sworn that
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          2  they have done something under penalties of perjury.

          3  Now, is there a determination made --

          4                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Wait, perjury?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: False

          6  swearing.

          7                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: No, I don't

          8  know about that.

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MUSTACELLO: We

         10  don't make that determination.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Who does?

         12                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: We evaluate --

         13  the determination as to whether a, for example,

         14  building-wide comprehensive case or a case is

         15  brought in connection with a false certification, on

         16  false certifications, looks at a whole range of

         17  factors, including, you know, the number of times

         18  you have engaged in an activity or a relationship

         19  with that.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Commissioner,

         21  with all due respect, I am trying to get the

         22  mechanics of what goes on.

         23                 You have said there is a false

         24  certification and you entered that into some sort of

         25  a record that you have that there has been a false
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          2  certification. And you have determined that 33

          3  percent of the 81 percent which you have are a false

          4  certification; what is the next step that you take?

          5                 Since the certification is signed by

          6  the owner or someone on his behalf, now that he

          7  removed that violation, what is the next step you

          8  take? It seems to me we are getting more false

          9  certifications than ever before.

         10                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: I don't know if

         11  that is the case. I mean, I think --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: That is my

         13  recollection. What was your previous fiscal year

         14  false certification?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MUSTACELLO:

         16  For the same time period over last year?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes.

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MUSTACELLO: We

         19  had reinspected 69 percent.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MUSTACELLO:

         22  And we had deemed 35 percent.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Thirty-five

         24  percent. So you are doing a little better. But you

         25  also examined a lot less.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: The previous

          3  year.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes. So it is

          5  pretty constant, the false certification, if nothing

          6  else.

          7                 Now, what happens after you -- I

          8  guess you notify the landlord and as far as you

          9  determined that the certification is incorrect, even

         10  though you signed it and it is signed as every

         11  certification is signed, what happens next? What is

         12  the next step? What do you do?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MUSTACELLO:

         14  Well, at that point obviously the condition still

         15  exists, we would reissue another violation. That

         16  violation would also remain on record.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And so what

         18  happens to the landlord? He filed the document which

         19  is allegedly untrue, is it some follow-up on it?

         20                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: This is also on

         21  the full range of violations, Council Member.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I understand

         23  that.

         24                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: It is not just

         25  --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I understand

          3  --

          4                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Let me finish.

          5  It is not just serious violations, this would also

          6  be in the case of violations that are A violations

          7  --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Absolutely

          9  true.

         10                 He is entitled to defend himself, he

         11  can make any defense he has.

         12                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Right.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: But what is

         14  the next procedure? Is the landlord called in to

         15  explain why the document is false? And what is his

         16  defense to the falseness to the document?

         17                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Well, if the

         18  condition, like any violation if the condition

         19  persists, we make a determination, one, as to

         20  whether we need to complete the work ourselves.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I understand

         22  that.

         23                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: And make a

         24  determination as to just whether we are going to

         25  issue --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes, but --

          3                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: I am answering

          4  the question.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes, but that

          6  is another issue.

          7                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: I am answering

          8  the question and you are not letting me. I don't

          9  know where you are going with this but I am

         10  answering the question and you are not letting me

         11  finish answering it. Either we can finish the answer

         12  or --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Finish your

         14  answer, but you are not answering my question.

         15                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Okay.

         16                 We can either make a determination as

         17  t whether we need to do the work ourselves, we can

         18  reissue the violation and in that case both

         19  violations remained, the original violation and the

         20  violation that we have written now become part of

         21  the record. We can refer the owner to housing

         22  litigation to determine whether we need to bring a

         23  comprehensive enforcement action against the owner.

         24  There are a whole range of things that can occur,

         25  and there is no way without getting into a specific
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          2  case, there is no way of knowing exactly what

          3  direction --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I want to

          5  know, here we have a situation, this is an official

          6  document, the certification of the Department of

          7  Housing Preservation and Development is an official

          8  document. If an allegedly false official document

          9  has been filed, people go to jail for filing false

         10  documents. I am not suggesting that but --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member.

         12                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: I don't

         13  understand where you are going?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I am trying

         15  to determine what do you do about the fact that 33

         16  percent of the inspectors go in and come back and 33

         17  percent of those documents are determined to have an

         18  alleged false certification, and to determine

         19  whether or not in fact they are false.

         20                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Well, in those

         21  cases --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Commissioner,

         23  just one moment.

         24                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member,
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          2  let us not spend the day --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I don't want

          4  to, I just want to get an answer.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Let me finish

          6  now.

          7                 Let us not spend the day on the issue

          8  of false certification; we can address that at a

          9  specific hearing.

         10                 This is a preliminary budget.

         11  Obviously the Commissioner is going to give you his

         12  answer and you have your points. Let's have a

         13  hearing on false -- the chair will certainly respond

         14  to that.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I agree with

         16  you. I think we ought to have a full hearing.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: We certainly

         18  will.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: The only

         20  thing I wanted to determine is what is the procedure

         21  they use? Or is there a procedure --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member,

         23  let's go --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: All right, I

         25  have some other questions.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: One last

          3  question, I have to move on.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I wish I

          5  didn't have to get into that because it was really

          6  rather simple.

          7                 I notice in the statement you left

          8  out any reference, or maybe it is there implied, to

          9  the NEP program, Neighborhood Entrepreneur Program;

         10  is there any reason why --

         11                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: No, we

         12  referenced Building Blocks and the disposition of

         13  the in rem stock. We talked about -- and that was

         14  where we actually used the word remarkable. And so,

         15  yes, we did reference the NEP program.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Okay. But you

         17  just don't use those words, that's why.

         18                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: The Building

         19  Blocks is comprised of three separate programs -

         20  NRP, NEP and TIL.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Now, what is

         22  the budget for the NEP and NRP and TIL program; what

         23  is the budget for that?

         24                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: (To the staff)

         25  do you have those numbers? When you look at the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            91

          1  HOUSING PRESERVATION AND DEVELOPMENT

          2  budget numbers it is a little misleading because the

          3  NEP budget, I think in the outyears looks larger,

          4  but it doesn't account for the fact that there is a

          5  mandatory TIL opt-out provision in the rules, so

          6  that buildings that would be eligible for NEP have

          7  the option to opt into the TIL program.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: So then they

          9  would be under the NRP Program?

         10                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: No, they would

         11  be under TIL.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: It is the TIL

         13  program. But as I understand it, NEP is for private

         14  entrepreneurs and NRP is for the not-for-profits and

         15  that aspect of it. How much -- on the NEP and NRP,

         16  how much is spent?

         17                 MS. WATT: NEP is budgeted at 81

         18  million, NRP is 42 million, and TIL is 21 million.

         19  All for 2000.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: So your

         21  emphasis is on NEP, but you are saying --

         22                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: No, that is

         23  incorrect. I think the more units go out through TIL

         24  than through the other two programs.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Not from a
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          2  budget point of view.

          3                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: That is

          4  specifically why I made the point, was that when the

          5  buildings get an option to opt into TIL, then the

          6  money goes with them to the TIL program, so it is

          7  not a question of our emphasis.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Do we have

          9  any way of determining how much of the $81 million

         10  or the past monies that went into NEP ended up going

         11  into TIL?

         12                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: We can break

         13  that out for you.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: In other

         15  words, you are still following the policy that a

         16  building where you feel -- well, if there is a

         17  building that is just occupied by tenants, that you

         18  will give them the option before letting it go into

         19  NEP to go into the TIL program?

         20                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Absolutely.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And then that

         22  money then goes with it.

         23                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Absolutely.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: That is what

         25  has been happening?

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            93

          1  HOUSING PRESERVATION AND DEVELOPMENT

          2                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And then go

          4  into the TIL program --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Another

          7  round, please.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Certainly.

          9                 Before we move on to the next person

         10  to ask a question which is Council Member Eldridge,

         11  I will ask the Clerk to call Council Member

         12  Malave-Dilan's name for the purpose of voting on

         13  198-B and the preconsidered resolution.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Dilan.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MALAVE-DILAN: Yes, Mr.

         16  Chairman, I vote aye.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay, thank you.

         18  And now the new --

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: The vote stands

         20  at six in the affirmative, none in the negative with

         21  no abstentions on both items, and the vote is still

         22  open.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: It is still

         24  open.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 Okay, Council Member Eisland.

          3  Followed by Council Member Boyland as the last

          4  speaker -- no, Council Member Michels again.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

          6                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Hi.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Hi.

          8                 I want to go back to the SRO unit

          9  again. Eight people, have we identified who they

         10  are?

         11                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Before he goes

         12  through the eight people, in addition there are

         13  other agency personnel that do, just like a lot of

         14  things at the agency, there are other agency

         15  personnel, both in the litigation bureau and in the

         16  anti-abandonment unit that do this type of work.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: I understand

         18  that.

         19                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: But in terms of

         20  the dedicated personnel, he is going to tell you.

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MUSTACELLO:

         22  The SRO unit is comprised of six inspectors, four

         23  from HPD, one from the Department of Health, one

         24  from the Department of Homeless Services and two

         25  clerical support.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: So there is

          3  no attorney specifically assigned to the SRO unit.

          4  And what happens when you have a hearing and you

          5  have a hearing examiner presiding over the hearing?

          6                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: There is one

          7  supervisory attorney in the Housing Litigation

          8  Bureau, and then they assign the cases out to the

          9  remainder of the HLB staff.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: So, what I

         11  am looking for, I note in the capital budget that

         12  there is money committed to SROs but that is to the

         13  conversion of SROs, it is some kind of a swap with

         14  HRA where you are doing the capital, HRA is doing

         15  the expense part of it to provide the supportive

         16  services, I am talking about protecting independent

         17  SROs where people are not part -- out of homeless

         18  shelters but where homeless shelters may be there

         19  next stop, where they are not part of supportive

         20  services programs, where they rely on SRO units for

         21  low-cost housing, that is the part I am talking

         22  about.

         23                 I think when we looked at -- when I

         24  look at your budget you get the feeling because of

         25  this other SRO project that it is a larger unit.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Well, no, it is

          3  not intended to convey that. What we are attempting

          4  to convey is -- I mean, what we are attempting to

          5  convey is that the utilization of federal money will

          6  be -- HRA is now going to spend it in one way and

          7  then the capital is forwarded to us. But you are

          8  right, those are development programs.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: What you

         10  concern yourself with is the issuance of a

         11  certificate of no harassment?

         12                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: So, why do

         14  you need, for instance -- the Department of

         15  Buildings is the agency that actually gives the

         16  violations for building violations, right?

         17                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Right. Although

         18  we can issue some violations as well, I think the

         19  idea is that the inspectors of DOH, DOB and HPD work

         20  together, but there are also obviously independent

         21  issues that are addressed as well.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: But what we

         23  are missing is the protective part, to protect the

         24  people who are living in those units from those

         25  units being renovated or changed, and that is why I
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          2  don't -- I think that there is not an adequate

          3  reflection in your unit for the legal process where

          4  work is being done without the certificate of no

          5  harassment, or where a certificate of no harassment

          6  has been issued when in fact there has been

          7  harassment. So that is what I would urge you to do.

          8                 I would like to go back to the

          9  question of attorneys, and we have done all of this

         10  stuff about inspectors. You are going to hire three

         11  full-time housing attorneys in the litigation

         12  bureau, are they going to be per diem?

         13                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: No. There are

         14  nine new attorneys total, three are -- six are

         15  full-time, three are contract.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: And the 20

         17  per diems, are they the paralegals --

         18                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Oh, they are

         19  all full-time.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: They are all

         21  full-time? But are they all permanent?

         22                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Or are they

         24  all per diems?

         25                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: They are all
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          2  permanent.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: The 20 per

          4  diems, are they paralegal? You said you are hiring

          5  20 per diems, and I didn't know -- I understood from

          6  your testimony, I thought they were mixed in with

          7  the lawyers, but it may not be. It may be that you

          8  are just hiring 20 per diems. I have so many papers

          9  here.

         10                 You say that you are helping us to

         11  hire three full-time HLB attorneys and 20 per diem

         12  employees, as well as enough additional inspectors

         13  --

         14                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Robin Weinstein

         15  is going to come up and answer, she knows all of

         16  that.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN: Good

         18  morning. I am Robin Weinstein, Deputy Commissioner

         19  for Anti-Abandonment and Housing Resources.

         20                 For this season we had four temporary

         21  attorneys and two per diem paralegals.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: But what

         23  about -- the heat season is the seasonal problem

         24  that you identified earlier, but what about false

         25  landlord certifications? Are you litigating with
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          2  that?

          3                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: And how many

          5  of the attorneys work on that?

          6                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: What do we

          7  have? How many total attorneys in the housing --

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN:

          9  Currently we have 26 attorneys, and as the

         10  Commissioner has said, we are hiring nine

         11  additional.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: And how many

         13  suits have you had against landlords for filing

         14  false certifications?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN: Our

         16  policy has been to include false certification

         17  actions as part of the overall comprehensive

         18  litigation that we do.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: So you can't

         20  break it out for us?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN: We do

         22  not generally select cases merely for false

         23  certification. We find it more efficient to sue on

         24  the comprehensive cases, including all of the

         25  violations.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: So, how many

          3  cases have you done for multiple violations?

          4                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: (To the staff)

          5  what do we do, about 150 a year?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN: Last

          7  year we did about 625, we claim to do more for next

          8  year and we plan to use nine new attorneys to

          9  substantially increase that area for next year.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: And then you

         11  are not going to separate out, next year for false

         12  certification? I think that would be very helpful to

         13  us, since that is a major question that we debate

         14  all the time in the Council, the effectiveness of

         15  false certification.

         16                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: My own personal

         17  view is that the cases that we bring are as a

         18  general matter, there is a lot going on. In some

         19  cases there is a failure to provide essential

         20  services and other cases there is a false

         21  certification issue that exists there.

         22                 Of the 220, I was under the

         23  impression it was about 150, but of those cases that

         24  we bring, there was a lot going on. I don't know how

         25  helpful it would be. We certainly can explore it,

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            101

          1  HOUSING PRESERVATION AND DEVELOPMENT

          2  how helpful it will be to single it out.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: I would like

          4  to know the number of false certifications.

          5                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: We will take a

          6  look at it, but that was the same answer I gave

          7  earlier.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: See, my point

          9  is that this is a very important document that is

         10  filed, and if it is felt by the people who file

         11  these documents that they can file it with impunity

         12  and not be charged with whatever they can be charged

         13  with by making a certification, they will continue

         14  to do it. If we are going to get a handle on making

         15  an example of somebody who has falsly certified a

         16  document, then that should be done and we should

         17  stop this huge amount of certification. And in a way

         18  that may also result in them doing the work that has

         19  to be done so they don't have it in the first place.

         20                 But I think that is the only point I

         21  am trying to make here, is that for some reason we

         22  have a huge percentage, maybe some of them to a

         23  great extent might be excusable. But if there are

         24  any of them that feel they can get away with it, if

         25  the word is out there that we don't discipline
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          2  people for false certification, then we have got a

          3  problem.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Just two

          6  more questions. On the Neighborhood Preservation

          7  Contracts and Community Consultant Contracts, under

          8  recent RFP there were groups chosen and they have

          9  not yet been registered and they are not receiving

         10  payment, so can you give us the status of these

         11  contracts?

         12                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Yes, the

         13  Community Consultant Contract Program, I think that

         14  that is just a factor of delay that occurred when

         15  the Administration and the Council were negotiating

         16  last year's budget, and once we have -- and we are

         17  just taking the registration of those contracts

         18  through the process, and once we get some final

         19  determination from the Law Department that the

         20  contracts are approved as to form, and we get them

         21  through the Mayor's Office of Contracts, so on and

         22  so forth, I think we won't have any problem with the

         23  community consultant contract.

         24                 The Neighborhood Preservation

         25  Consultants is a different issue.
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          2                 In connection with that procurement,

          3  the Mayor's Office of Contracts has expressed some

          4  concern about the procurement process. We have been

          5  working to try to allay their concerns.

          6                 What we have done in the interim is

          7  that we have extended the existing contracts through

          8  the end of this Fiscal Year, or we are in the

          9  process of extending them, so those contracts are

         10  just kind of held, have been held harmless, we have

         11  been moving through the process and we will see if

         12  we are able to get the issues resolved so we can do

         13  the registration for the Year 2000.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: The

         15  community consultant ones have been told that they

         16  have to voucher for a set of deliverable services;

         17  what does that mean and how is that different from

         18  others?

         19                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: I am not

         20  familiar with being told that.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: It just

         22  appears to me that it is form of harassment for

         23  these programs that we keep putting in and that the

         24  Administration keeps eliminating, and there are a

         25  lot of people who feel that these are needed
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          2  programs and are healthy programs and we would like

          3  to fund --

          4                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Yes, I don't

          5  disagree, but I don't think anybody would advocate

          6  that we would give the money out without the

          7  appropriate registration process and so forth. And I

          8  don't, quite frankly, think that there is any

          9  problem that isn't just standard procedure with

         10  respect to the community consultant contracts.

         11                 Those contracts have been, and I

         12  would hazard to say that our performance with

         13  respect to the payment of those contracts has

         14  occurred, we have not had problems with that in the

         15  past, and quite frankly, the agencies didn't create

         16  the delay, what we needed to do was to work through

         17  the process and that is what we are doing now.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: I was told

         19  that in the City Record a couple of weeks or a month

         20  or so ago there was a list of SROs that were getting

         21  funded; would those be part of the SRO the Hocwa

         22  (phonetic) or part of your loan program? Do you know

         23  what I am saying?

         24                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: No, I am not

         25  familiar with it.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: All right,

          3  thank you.

          4                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Council

          5  Member Boyland.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: My last

          7  questions. I am looking at your Preliminary Budget,

          8  a couple of things I would just like you to explain.

          9                 Your StoreWorks Program for Fiscal

         10  Year 2001, the money was shifted, is going to be

         11  shifted for City Homes, one, and the construction of

         12  two baseball fields, explain what that is. And home

         13  ownership subsidies, I don't see an increased number

         14  there of the neighborhood initiatives.

         15                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: I think the

         16  baseball fields are two fields that are actually

         17  Parks Department properties for which the capital

         18  budget money is funneled through our budget because

         19  the properties are technically under our

         20  jurisdiction, but that is going to be handled by the

         21  Parks Department.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Do you know

         23  where they are located?

         24                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS:  I think they

         25  are in Community Board 11 in Manhattan.
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          2                 And then StoreWorks?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Yes, there is

          4  a shift from City Homes Program, you have for Fiscal

          5  Year 2001.

          6                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: I don't know

          7  what that is off of the top of my head, I will get

          8  the information on what that is.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay, Home

         10  Ownership Subsidies and Neighborhood Initiatives.

         11                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: We are just

         12  shifting those, those are just re-estimates given

         13  the in rem portfolio, so we are just shifting the

         14  money to reflect the characteristics of the stock.

         15  So we are putting money into Home Works and we have

         16  got additional units that fit the profile of that

         17  program as opposed to moving them, as opposed to

         18  keeping the money in another budget line.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Does this

         20  mean you are looking forward to doing more

         21  StoreWorks Programs, which is the commercial piece

         22  with the residential on top?

         23                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Right.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay.

         25                 Also, you went over NEP, NRP, TIL,
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          2  Community Consultants, City Home Partnerships,

          3  StoreWorks -- Video-conferencing, I am happy to see

          4  that you are moving into --

          5                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: I think what we

          6  would like to do there is an effort to try to make

          7  the education programs for landlords more accessible

          8  so that we can do, provide the content or the course

          9  say at our location at 100 Gold Street in Manhattan,

         10  and then also have people participate at remote

         11  locations and participate in the education programs,

         12  so they are at a location in Brooklyn or vice-versa.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Oh, and my

         14  last question also is, we are looking at working

         15  with the City Comptroller, more minority contractors

         16  going into the NEP program, I think that education

         17  also would be able to better assess our community in

         18  terms of in the Brownsville, Bedford Stuyvesant

         19  area, in terms of them being able to get involved in

         20  the NEP, NRP programs, I think we need to do more of

         21  an outreach. And while we are doing the video

         22  conferencing and we are coming together in terms of

         23  the Internet, while we are utilizing it maybe we

         24  ought to push more within --

         25                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: We can push
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          2  considerably, but I will say that from the

          3  perspective of our Neighborhood Entrepreneur's

          4  Program and from the programs that we operate, our

          5  participation, minority-owned, women-owned

          6  businesses is extremely high, it is probably -- in

          7  the NEP Program it is probably over 80 percent

          8  participation in those programs. So, we are very

          9  comfortable with the progress we have made in that

         10  regard.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay, I would

         12  love to work with your further on pushing more

         13  minorities into that program.

         14                 Thank you, Commissioner.

         15                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Thank you.

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:

         17  Commissioner, I was very interested in your opening

         18  statement with respect to the new office of

         19  Anti-Abandonment and Housing Resources. I know you

         20  are redeveloping that issue, the program and

         21  coordinated with an already existent program, and I

         22  think it would be a good idea if we could have a

         23  briefing on that. I would love to get an

         24  understanding of what is the change in direction you

         25  are saying from the agency.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Sure.

          3                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I think

          4  that would be important.

          5                 I am also very pleased that you are

          6  looking into the tax arrears and repair needs of the

          7  already existing TIL programs, and does that also

          8  include the HDFC's?

          9                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Yes.

         10                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So it is

         11  not just a TIL. That is very important.

         12                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: It is probably

         13  more appropriately referred to as HD/HDFCs,

         14  actually.

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes. And

         16  you should know that over the last year I spent a

         17  considerable amount of time at the Department of

         18  Finance with Commissioner Cerullo and Barsky

         19  discussing that problem with them. Because these are

         20  buildings that went into the HDFC program without

         21  any of the tax abatements and such that we have had,

         22  and they have been saddled with huge costs and a lot

         23  of their money is going into paying these tax

         24  arrears and the interest of these tax arrears is 16

         25  or 18 percent, and as a result they can't spend
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          2  money on things that they should be spending it on

          3  to keep the buildings up. So I think that is

          4  extremely important.

          5                 Let me ask you this: Although there

          6  were plans to reduce the number of groups funded by

          7  the Neighborhood Preservation Program to 30, this

          8  Committee has heard reports that all of the original

          9  groups are still receiving funding but on a

         10  month-to-month extension instead of year-long

         11  contracts; why are the groups being funded in that

         12  way?

         13                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Well, as I

         14  mentioned to Council Member Eldridge, I thought we

         15  would get in a position where these issues would be

         16  resolved with the Mayor's Office of Contracts. They

         17  are not, and so -- as of yet.

         18                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Maybe

         19  they need a little help.

         20                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: What's that?

         21                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Maybe

         22  they need a little boost by you to get moving on

         23  those things? There are piles and bottoms of the

         24  piles are tops of piles.

         25                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: I don't think
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          2  that is the issue. I think they have some legitimate

          3  concern about the process and so we need to work

          4  through those concerns. If we don't get them

          5  resolved then we will have extended the groups

          6  through the end of the Fiscal Year and then we will

          7  evaluate what we will do at that point.

          8                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  When the

          9  number is finally pared down to 30, will there be

         10  tenants and landlords who live in non-served areas,

         11  who go for the types of services provided, formerly

         12  provided by the local NBC groups?

         13                 In other words, when you get down to

         14  the 30, which is the targeted figure, will there be

         15  services to those areas not covered by the 30?

         16                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: I would expect

         17  that the 30 -- it certainly was our plan that the 30

         18  was comprehensive in terms of covering the needed

         19  geographic areas of the City.

         20                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You make

         21  a representation that you will see to it that all

         22  parts of the City are covered?

         23                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Yes,

         24  absolutely.

         25                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay, two
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          2  more questions.

          3                 Mr. Linares.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Just briefly.

          5  Clearly, when many of the properties that we are

          6  looking to shift from City-owned and turn it over to

          7  entrepreneurs, or tenants, require some type of

          8  training, especially with tenants going through this

          9  process, and my question is, you know, what type of

         10  training is made available to help tenants through

         11  this transition, since my understanding is that when

         12  you have a building who is organized, the

         13  probabilities of keeping up the property is enhanced

         14  and also holding the tenants accountable, holding

         15  the owner accountable, holding the co-op, whatever

         16  it is, it enhances the property when tenants are

         17  organized. I just wanted to ask, how much emphasis

         18  do you place in tenant organizing and what level of

         19  funding are you currently employing for that

         20  purpose?

         21                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Yes, I don't

         22  know if we put emphasis on tenant organizing per se,

         23  as much as trying to work with tenants to give them

         24  the tools and skills that are necessary to own and

         25  operate a building going forward.
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          2                 I will just say three things, and

          3  then we can give you the specifics on the contracts,

          4  but there is an extensive amount of education and

          5  support that HPD staff, in our Division of

          6  Alternative Management Programs provides to tenants

          7  in the process, that is a big part of the efforts

          8  and the activities of the folks that work in the TIL

          9  unit at HPD.

         10                 We also have service contracts where

         11  we provide, where we have non-profits that provide

         12  support to the tenants as well, in terms of training

         13  and so forth, and the value of those contracts, $1.6

         14  million. And then the third thing was that the

         15  conversation that I had with Council Member Michels

         16  about providing support for the HDFCs and TIL

         17  projects that have gone through the pipeline. A lot

         18  of that will be focused on refresher courses, if you

         19  will, or additional support that we provide to TIL

         20  projects that are already in tenant ownership.

         21                 So, it is a big part of the issue, we

         22  certainly understand and agree that a great deal of

         23  work is necessary in order to provide the support

         24  that is necessary for the buildings to be successful

         25  once they are in tenant ownership.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Thank you.

          3                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The

          4  four-year capital budget, 46 percent is for

          5  low-income housing, how many new units of low-income

          6  housing will be created, do you have any idea? Ball

          7  park figure?

          8                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: We will get the

          9  number. The number is at hand, we know that.

         10                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: If loan

         11  programs are now rededicated to anti-abandonment

         12  priorities, how will communities not targeted by

         13  anti-abandonment priorities be served?

         14                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Well, there is

         15  some internal debate within HPD, and I think both in

         16  the general community as well, about the appropriate

         17  application of the resources.

         18                 My view is that the priority for the

         19  allocation of our loan-funds and in PLP, N8A and

         20  Small Homes Private, needs to be on the

         21  anti-abandonment areas, or what we would

         22  characterize as buildings that have some degree of

         23  distress.

         24                 It will create some pressure, and I

         25  don't know geographically how that will play out. I
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          2  think in communities all throughout the City there

          3  will be buildings that meet the definition of

          4  distress that will become eligible for these loan

          5  funds, so I don't think it is necessarily a question

          6  of communities missing out, as much as it would be

          7  buildings that had not previously qualified, or

          8  would not qualify for as a distressed building.

          9                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I

         10  understand you correctly, what you are saying is it

         11  is not a geographical bargaining --

         12                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: It's a building

         13  type.

         14                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It is a

         15  categorical.

         16                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Right, exactly.

         17                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: My last

         18  question is, it has been said that more code

         19  inspectors were not the solution to the code

         20  enforcement problem, but simply a better mechanism

         21  for turning violation of fines into liens, do you

         22  agree with that analysis?

         23                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: I think that

         24  that is part of the analysis. I mean, we have had

         25  several -- you know, and you have to come from there
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          2  starting from a variety of different assumptions.

          3                 The first is that since 1991, since

          4  the State of New York cut its funding for code

          5  inspectors, that money has not been replaced, and I

          6  guess although we go up every year and try to lobby

          7  for it, I think our assumption is that money will

          8  not be forthcoming.

          9                 Secondly, that the notion that a code

         10  violation could convert either through some type of

         11  legal action or through some type of legislative or

         12  administrative mechanism convert into a lien or a

         13  debt against a property, I think it is an attractive

         14  proposition, and I think might serve to make the

         15  process more effective.

         16                 I would agree with that, I think

         17  there are a whole host of issues related to that --

         18                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But you

         19  would agree that code enforcement inspectors do have

         20  a good role in that they save buildings and make

         21  sure violations are removed.

         22                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: But, Council

         23  member, my own personal view is that the goal is not

         24  to write as many violations as possible, and there

         25  is no inspector that I have met that is able to
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          2  convert a violation into some type of legal action

          3  or into debt on a property. So, that --

          4                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I always

          5  look at violations, a violation is a means to

          6  corrective action, and the saving of property and

          7  the saving of buildings.

          8                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: One --

          9                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: There was

         10  a whole period of time where very few violations

         11  were written and we saw a lot of deterioration of

         12  properties and abandonment of properties. What the

         13  numbers are is another issue.

         14                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Well, I would

         15  beg to differ with that characterization, but that's

         16  fine.

         17                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I am not

         18  saying recently. I have been around for a couple of

         19  years.

         20                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: No, I

         21  understand. I understand. Those were not sole issues

         22  of violations. There are also economic issues with

         23  those properties. There were a whole host of issues

         24  that, financing issues, access to capital. There are

         25  a whole host of issues and I think that that in some
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          2  respects is --

          3                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: All I am

          4  saying to you is the code enforcement is one of the

          5  weapons in the -- those weapons needed to fight to

          6  --

          7                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: That is a

          8  revision of your earlier statement.

          9                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That was

         10  included, I didn't say it was the only one.

         11                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: That is a

         12  revision of your earlier statement.

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I don't

         14  think it is a revision, it is a clarification.

         15                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Right.

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I am

         17  playing your game now.

         18                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: That's fine.

         19                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The fact

         20  of the matter is, they are not simply a means of

         21  turning fines into liens, that is not the only

         22  reason, as this statement indicated.

         23                 I should tell you that you are on

         24  good safe ground because you are now agreeing with

         25  Budget Director Harding.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: I saw his

          3  testimony last night on television.

          4                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you

          5  very much, Commissioner.

          6                 I will turn it back to Chairperson

          7  Spigner.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: One final

          9  question, Commissioner. As it relates to the

         10  community consultant contracts, we are told that

         11  unlike in the past they must voucher in order to get

         12  their money for a set of deliverable services. How

         13  is that different from the way in which groups have

         14  reported on and voucher for payments in the past?

         15                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: I am really not

         16  familiar with this.

         17                 This is the first time I have heard

         18  this and we will look into it.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

         20                 Then there are no requests for

         21  information on other topics, and our members have

         22  exhausted their time and I want to thank you as we

         23  proceed with the process.

         24                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: This concludes
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          2  the first portion. We will now move to the

          3  Commissioner of the Department of Buildings. Are

          4  they here? Are they ready? They are not here. Then

          5  we will take a small recess until DOB officials

          6  arrive.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 (Hearing concluded at 12:15 p.m.)
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